
FAIRA BOARD & EXECUTIVE 
BOARD MEETING 

March 9, 2020 



March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 2 of 67 

FAIRA Key Contacts 
 
 
Contact Name Office # Alternate / Cell # E-Mail 

 
 

Susan Blankenburg (FAIRA) 415-536-4005 415-517-8028 susan_blankenburg@faira.org 

Alex Banks (FAIRA) 415-536-5005 415-536-4004 alex_banks@faira.org 

Marco Guardi (FAIRA) 949-349-9884  marco_guardi@faira.org 

Mike Sims (Bonita Sunnyside FPD) 619-479-2346 619-540-8303 msims@bonitafd.org 

Eric Walder (South Placer FPD) 916-791-8464 
 

ewalder@southplacerfire.org 

David Fulcher (Aromas FPD) 831-333-4600 
 

David.Fulcher@fire.ca.gov 

Criss Brainard (San Miguel FPD) 619-670-0500 619-279-4471 cbrainard@sanmiguelfire.org 
 

Scott Draper (Mason Valley FPD) 775-463-2261 775-750-4398 sdraper@lyon-county.org 

Mark A. Johnson (Fresno County FPD) 559-493-4355 559-281-4300 mark.a.johnson@fire.ca.gov 

Don Butz (Lakeside FPD) 619-390-2350 
 

dbutz@lakesidefire.com 

Brian Boggeln (Alpine FPD) 619-445-2635 619-203-0050 bboggeln@alpinefire.org 

Richard Pearce (Tiburon FPD) 415-435-7208 
 

415-328-1323 rpearce@tiburonfire.org 

Sean Bailey (Northstar CSD) 
 

530-414-8857 sbailey@northstarcsd.org 

Mark Pomi (Kentfield FPD) 415-453-7464 707-695-4749 mpomi@kentfieldfire.org 

Jonathan Wilby (Orange County FA) 714-573-6832 714-309-5975 jonathanwilby@ocfa.org 

Howard Wood (Vacaville FPD) 707-447-2252 707-480-7017 howard.wood@vfpd.net 

Dale Bacigalupi (FAIRA Counsel) 559-431-5600 559-246-8639 dbacigalupi@lozanosmith.com 

John Paget (FAIRA Accountant) 760-518-7186 760-518-7186 cpa4flight@aol.com 

Joe Mastro (Mastro & Associates) 559-261-4300 559-917-5632 joemcpa@sbcglobal.net 

Jack Joyce (Bay Actuarial Consultants) 925-377-5269 902-286-0685 jjoyce@bayactuarial.com 

Sam Black (Charles Schwab & Co) 415-945-6464 415-994-7941 sam.black@schwab.com 

Don Jesberg (KCM Investments) 415-461-7788 
 

djesberg@kcmadvisors.com 

 

 
 

mailto:susan_blankenburg@faira.org
mailto:alex_banks@faira.org
mailto:msims@bonitafd.org
mailto:ewalder@southplacerfire.org
mailto:cbrainard@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:sdraper@lyon-county.org
mailto:mark.a.johnson@fire.ca.gov
mailto:bboggeln@alpinefire.org
mailto:rpearce@tiburonfire.org
mailto:mpomi@kentfieldfire.org
mailto:jonathanwilby@ocfa.org
mailto:howard.wood@vfpd.net
mailto:dbacigalupi@lozanosmith.com
mailto:cpa4flight@aol.com
mailto:joemcpa@sbcglobal.net
mailto:jjoyce@bayactuarial.com
mailto:sam.black@schwab.com
mailto:djesberg@kcmadvisors.com


March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 3 of 67 

FAIRA MEETING CALENDAR 
2020 

 

 
*All dates and meeting venues are subject to change as directed by the President of the Board

MEETING DATES TIME MEETING LOCATION 

Monday, March 9, 2020 10:30 a.m. Board and Executive Meeting Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services 
1255 Battery Street, Suite 450 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

Monday, June 15, 2020 
 

10:30 a.m. Annual Board and Executive Meeting Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services 
1255 Battery Street, Suite 450 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

Monday, September 7, 2020 
AS CALLED ON BY THE BOARD 

PRESIDENT 

10:30 a.m. Board and Executive Meeting Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services 
1255 Battery Street, Suite 450 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

Monday, December 14, 2020 
AS CALLED ON BY THE BOARD 

PRESIDENT 

10:30 a.m. Board and Executive Meeting Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services 
1255 Battery Street, Suite 450 

San Francisco, CA 94111 



March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 4 of 67 

FAIRA Board 

 

President  Director  Director 
Jonathan Wilby  Chief Scott Draper  Chief Richard Pearce 
Orange County Fire Authority  Mason Valley FPD  Tiburon FPD 
Irvine, CA  Yerington, NV  Tiburon, CA 
     
     
Vice President  Director  Director 
Criss Brainard  Chief Mike Sims  Chief Howard Wood 
San Miguel Consolidated FPD  Bonita-Sunnyside FPD  Vacaville FPD 
Spring Valley, CA  San Diego, CA  Vacaville, CA 
     
     
Treasurer  Director  Director 
Chief Mark Pomi  Chief Sean Bailey  Chief David Fulcher 
Kentfield, FPD  Northstar CSD  Aromas Tri-County FPD 
Kentfield, CA  Truckee, CA  Monterey, CA 
     
     
Secretary    Director 
Chief Mark A. Johnson    Chief Brian Boggeln 
Fresno FPD    Alpine FPD 
Sanger, CA    Alpine, CA 
     
     
Elected Executive Board Member    Director 
Chief Don Butz    Chief Eric Walder 
Lakeside FPD    South Placer FPD 
Lakeside, CA    Granite Bay, CA 
     
     
     
 

      
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     



March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 5 of 67 

 

1 Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 

Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 



March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 6 of 67 

2 Confirmation of Agenda 
NOTICE AGENDA OF THE FIRE AGENCIES MEETING OF THE BOARD  

March 9, 2020 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

To be posted by all Districts in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government 
Code Section 54950, et seq. 

 
The Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority (“FAIRA” or the “Authority”) will hold the Board and the 

Executive Board Meeting on Monday, March 9, 2020, at 10:30 a.m. in the offices of Arthur J. Gallagher, 
1255 Battery Street, Suite 450, Board Room, San Francisco, CA 94111.  

Telephonic Attendance (Optional) 
Dial in # 877-920-8434 
Participation # 3816979 

Kentfield Fire Protection District, 1004 Sir Francis Drake Blvd., Kentfield, CA 94904 
Northstar Fire Station 31, 910 Northstar Dr., Truckee, CA 96161 

Lakeside Fire Protection District, 12216 Lakeside Ave., Lakeside, CA 92040 
Station 64, 420 Vine St., Vacaville, CA 95688 

Alpine Fire Protection District, 1364 Tavern Rd., Alpine, CA 91901 
Orange County Fire Authority, 1 Fire Authority Rd., Irvine, CA 92602 

Carmel Highlands FPD, 2221 Garden Rd., Monterey, CA 93940 
San Miguel Consolidated FPD, 2850 Via Orange Way, Spring Valley, CA 91978 

South Placer FPD, 6900 Eureka Rd., Granite Bay, CA 95746 
 

AGENDA 

1 Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum ---------------------------------------------------------- 5 

2 Confirmation of Agenda --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 6 

3 Public Comment ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
Oral Communications to the Board, opportunity for public comment with respect to matters not on the 
Agenda ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 9 
This portion of the Agenda may be utilized by any person to address the Board of Directors’ on any matter 
within the jurisdiction of FAIRA not listed on the agenda. Depending on the subject matter, per the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, the Board may not be able to respond at this time or until the specific item is placed on the 
Agenda for a future meeting. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. --------------------------------------------- 9 

4 Approval of the Minutes of the December 16, 2019 Board and Executive Board Meeting - 10 

5 General Manager Report ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 16 

5.1 FAIRA Activity Update ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 16 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 17 

5.2 CAJPA Data Analysis Project --------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 22 



March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 7 of 67 

Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 22 

5.3 Non-Responsive Districts ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 25 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 25 

5.4 Consideration of Implementing Experience Modifications and/or Increased Deductibles 28 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 28 

5.5 FDAC Agreement ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 29 
Consideration and Possible Action -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 29 

5.6 Discussion on FAIRA’s Annual Meeting – June 15, 2020 ---------------------------------------------- 34 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 34 

6 Financial Update ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 35 

6.1 Audited Financial Statement year ending June 30, 2019 and 2018 ------------------------------- 35 
Consideration and Possible Action -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 35 

6.2 Deductible Payments Update -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 37 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 37 

6.3 Presentation of the 2019-2020 Updated Annual Budget --------------------------------------------- 38 
Consideration and Possible Action -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 38 

7 Loss Control Consultant ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 43 

7.1 Loss Control Update -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 43 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 43 

7.2 Automobile Liability Loss Control -------------------------------------------------------------------------- 44 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 44 

7.3 Claim Connect ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 45 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 45 

7.4 Reserve Analysis ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 46 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 46 

7.5 Drive to Survive – 2020 Dates ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 53 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 53 

7.6 Core360 EigenPrism Demonstration ---------------------------------------------------------------------- 56 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 56 

8 Brokerage Update--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 57 

8.1 Stewardship Report -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 57 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 57 

8.2 Gallagher Fee Renewal ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 58 
Consideration and Possible Action -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 58 

8.3 Renewal Expectations and Insurance Premiums------------------------------------------------------- 60 
Consideration and Possible Action -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 60 

8.4 Prospecting Update -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 61 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 61 

9 Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel -------------------------------------------------------- 63 
The Board may enter into Closed session at this time. ----------------------------------------------------------------- 63 

9.1 Potential Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(b)] ----------------------------------------------- 63 

9.2 Pending Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(a)] ------------------------------------------------ 63 

9.3 FAIRA Claims and Loss Reports ----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 63 



March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 8 of 67 

The above matters described on the agenda may be held in closed session as a conference with counsel 
under the provisions of Government Code § 54956.9 (a) and (b). If closed sessions are held, a report of 
actions subject to disclosure will be made by the Authority’s Counsel upon return to open session 
respectively. -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 63 

10 Other Business ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 64 
Other business as necessary so that FAIRA can perform its functions as authorized by law and which has 
arisen within seventy-two (72) hours prior to the initiation of this meeting and may be considered under 
the Brown Act. ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 64 

11 Correspondence and Informational Items ----------------------------------------------------------- 65 

11.1 Lakeside FPD – Change in District Alternative Representative ------------------------------------ 65 
Receive and File ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 65 

12 Adjournment ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 66 
I certify that this Authority Agenda was posted and sent by First Class United States Mail to all Members of 
the Authority 72 hours before the noted meeting. ---------------------------------------------------------------------- 66 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  Date: March 6, 2020 
Susan Blankenburg 
General Manager 
 
FAIRA, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests individuals who require 
specific accommodations to access, attend or participate in the Board Meeting, due to disability, to please 
contact the General Manager at 415-536-4005 at least two (2) business days prior to the scheduled 
meeting to ensure that the Authority may assist you. Others with questions concerning this Agenda please 
contact the General Manager at 415-536-4005. 



March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 9 of 67 

3 Public Comment 

Oral Communications to the Board, opportunity for public comment with respect to matters not on the 
Agenda 
 
This portion of the Agenda may be utilized by any person to address the Board of Directors’ on any 
matter within the jurisdiction of FAIRA not listed on the agenda. Depending on the subject matter, per 
the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Board may not be able to respond at this time or until the specific item is 
placed on the Agenda for a future meeting. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. 
 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 10 of 67 

4 Approval of the Minutes of the December 16, 2019 Board and 
Executive Board Meeting 

FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2019 
 

 
FIRE AGENCIES INSURANCE RISK AUTHORITY MINUTES OF THE BOARD AND 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
December 16, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
To be posted by all Districts in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, 

California Government Code Section 54950, et seq. 
 

Telephonic Meeting 
Dial in # 877-920-8434 
Participation # 3816979 

Kentfield Fire Protection District, 1004 Sir Francis Drake Blvd., Kentfield, CA 94904  
Northstar Fire Station 31, 910 Northstar Dr., Truckee, CA 96161 

Lakeside Fire Protection District, 12216 Lakeside Ave., Lakeside, CA 92040  
Station 64, 420 Vine St., Vacaville, CA 95688 

Alpine Fire Protection District, 1364 Tavern Rd., Alpine, CA 91901 
Orange County Fire Authority, 1 Fire Authority Rd., Irvine, CA 92602 

Carmel Highlands FPD, 2221 Garden Rd., Monterey, CA 93940 
San Miguel Consolidated FPD, 2850 Via Orange Way, Spring Valley, CA 91978  

South Placer FPD, 6900 Eureka Rd., Granite Bay, CA 95746 
PRESENT: President Bill Paskle (Alpine FPD); Mark Pomi (Kentfield FPD); Criss Brainard (San Miguel 
Consolidated FPD); Sean Bailey (Northstar CSD); Howard Wood (Vacaville FPD); Eric Walder (South 
Placer FPD); Don Butz (Lakeside FPD); Jonathan Wilby (Orange County FA); David Fulcher (Aromas 
Tri-County FPD) 
Absent: Scott Draper (Mason Valley FPD); Mark Johnson (Fresno FPD); Richard Pearce (Tiburon 
FPD); Mike Sims (Bonita-Sunnyside FPD); 
Staff: Susan Blankenburg (FAIRA General Manager); Marco Guardi (FAIRA Loss Control Consultant); 
Zack Phillips (Arthur J. Gallagher); Alex Banks (FAIRA Analyst); Eric Kikalo (Arthur J. Gallagher); Dale 
Bacigalupi (Lozano Smith) 
 



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2019 

 

 
March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 11 of 67 

ITEM 1 - CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  
President Bill Paskle called the meeting to order at 10:05 am and confirmed we do have 
a quorum. Alex Banks confirmed each District was at the noted location listed on the 
agenda. Mark Pomi confirmed he was at Kentfield Fire Protection District, 1004 Sir 
Francis Drake Blvd., Kentfield, CA 94904; Sean Bailey confirmed he was at Northstar 
Fire Station 31, 910 Northstar Dr., Truckee, CA 96161; Don Butz confirmed he was at 
Lakeside Fire Protection District, 12216 Lakeside Ave., Lakeside, CA 92040; Howard 
Wood confirmed he was at Station 64, 420 Vine St., Vacaville, CA 95688; Bill Paskle 
confirmed he was at Alpine Fire Protection District, 1364 Tavern Rd., Alpine, CA 91901; 
Jonathan Wilby confirmed he was at Orange County Fire Authority, 1 Fire Authority Rd., 
Irvine, CA 92602; David Fulcher confirmed he was at Carmel Highlands FPD, 2221 
Garden Rd., Monterey, CA 93940; Criss Brainard confirmed he was at San Miguel 
Consolidated FPD, 2850 Via Orange Way, Spring Valley, CA 91978; Eric Walder 
confirmed he was at South Placer FPD, 6900 Eureka Rd., Granite Bay, CA 95746;   
Mr. Banks announced that individuals who were calling in from the public needed to both 
announce themselves and where they were calling from. Jim Arend advised he was 
calling from Santa Rose Fire on behalf of Chief Gosner. Susan Blankenburg confirmed 
with Mr. Arend that Chief Gosner was previously with Roseland FPD, a former Member 
of FAIRA. Davina Hatfield called in from San Ramon Valley FPD.   
Item 2 – Confirmation of Agenda  
A motion was made to approve the Agenda.  
M/S/P Brainard/Wilby 
Members that voted to approve the Agenda: Bill Paskle, Alpine; Criss Brainard, San 
Miguel; David Fulcher, Carmel Highlands; Don Butz, Lakeside; Eric Walder, South 
Placer; Howard Wood, Vacaville; Jonathan Wilby, Orange County; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; 
Sean Bailey, Northstar. 
ITEM 3 - ORAL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD, OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC 
COMMENT WITH RESPECT TO MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
There was no public comment. Mr. Banks confirmed with each member that no 
members of the public were present at their location. 
ITEM 4 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE September 9, 2019 BOARD MEETING 
OF THE FAIRA BOARD AND EXECUTIVE BOARD. 
A motion was made to approve the minutes of the September 9, 2019 FAIRA Board and 
Executive Meeting, as submitted.  
M/S/P Wilby/Walder  
Members that voted to approve the motion: Bill Paskle, Alpine; Criss Brainard, San 
Miguel; David Fulcher, Carmel Highlands; Don Butz, Lakeside; Eric Walder, South 
Placer; Howard Wood, Vacaville; Jonathan Wilby, Orange County; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; 
Sean Bailey, Northstar.  
Item 5.1 – Deductible Payments Update  



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2019 

 

 
March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 12 of 67 

Zack Phillips stated that $308,000 of the $750,000 annual aggregate deductible has 
been billed to FAIRA by Allied World. He noted that $117,000 of the $308,000 has been 
billed to the Members for their deductible reimbursement.   
Mr. Phillips noted that Orange County Fire Authority is now the only District with an 
outstanding balance. We recently received another invoice from Allied World for 
$308,000 which puts us at $616,000 towards our $750,000 deductible.   
Item 6.1 – Roseland FPD 
Susan Blankenburg stated that we had a Roseland representative on the line on behalf 
of Santa Rosa Fire Department. She announced that Roseland FPD was dissolved in 
April of 2019 and has had insurance since 7/1/2019 from the city. She noted that they 
did not give us timely reporting of intent to leave FAIRA. The City of Santa Rosa, which 
took over all of Roseland’s assets, is asking for FAIRA’s consideration to waive the 
outstanding premium. It is staff’s recommendation that we allow them to leave and waive 
their annual premium.   
Howard Wood motioned to waive the Roseland Premium  
M/S/P Wood/Pomi 
Members that voted to approve the motion: Bill Paskle, Alpine; Criss Brainard, San 
Miguel; David Fulcher, Carmel Highlands; Don Butz, Lakeside; Eric Walder, South 
Placer; Howard Wood, Vacaville; Jonathan Wilby, Orange County; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; 
Sean Bailey, Northstar. 
Item 6.2 – Minor Updates to FAIRA’s Joint Power Authority and Liability Risk 
Coverage Agreement 
Ms. Blankenburg noted that there were some very minor changes that were needed to 
complete the JPA and LRSA. She noted that the changes are all stylistic and do not 
change the intent of the documents. Dale Bacigalupi, FAIRA’s Legal Counsel, concurred 
with Ms. Blankenburg. 
Item 6.3 – Status on Mailing of the Updated Joint Power Authority and Liability 
Risk Coverage Agreement 
President Bill Paskle asked Ms. Blankenburg if there was an update on the amount of 
signed agreements we had received back, and Ms. Blankenburg advised that we had 
received 52, which was enough to make the updates to each document effective.   
Item 6.4 – CAJPA Tort Liability Study 
Ms. Blankenburg stated that this study will be starting in December. The $5,000 funding 
was approved in June for the study looking into the historical growth of the Tort Liability 
claims and what the cost drivers are, as many public agencies are seeing them go out of 
control.   
Item 7.1 – Loss Control Site Visits 
Marco Guardi noted that Mark Shadowens, FAIRA’s Northern California Loss Control 
Consultant, had conducted seven visits. Mr. Guardi is going to split the seven into two 
different groups. The first group of four is related to Districts with high EPLI losses. With 
these Districts, Mr. Shadowens asked to review policies and procedures related to HR, 
conduct a review, and organize a follow up meeting with them to discuss 



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2019 

 

 
March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 13 of 67 

recommendations. He also requests they complete the Risk Control Survey. Out of the 
four Districts, which are Arcata FPD, Central FPD of Santa Cruz, Moraga Orinda FPD 
and Vacaville FPD, we have had some trouble getting traction with Central FPD of Santa 
Cruz. Phone calls and emails have been sent but we have not received anything back.   
The next group, consisting of the remaining three Districts, focused Districts that have 
had frequency with auto losses. Kneeland FPD falls into this group and we have had 
troubles reaching them. Another District in this group is Pajaro Valley FPD – their losses 
were reviewed and the meeting was successful. Mr. Guardi added that we have also had 
trouble reaching Humboldt FPD. Ms. Blankenburg interjected that we are recommending 
some sort of retribution for the Districts not responding. Jonathan Wilby inquired upon 
the amount of time that must pass in order for a penalty to take effect. We do not have 
exact dates of follow up’s sent to the District, but we want a 30 day waiting period after 
the 3rd request to enforce any penalty. The third request would come from Ms. 
Blankenburg and would be sent via certified mail. Eric Walder added that he supports 
the penalty, but that each timeline should be equal for any District that gets put on 
notice. He would like a timeline set for when follow up’s are sent and when the penalty 
will take effect.    
A motion was made to approve the 10% penalty effective immediately, to send future 
emails with read receipts, hard copies via certified mail, and to add a resolution to the 
next Board Meeting 
M/S/P Brainard/Bailey 
Members that voted to approve the motion: Bill Paskle, Alpine; Criss Brainard, San 
Miguel; David Fulcher, Carmel Highlands; Don Butz, Lakeside; Eric Walder, South 
Placer; Howard Wood, Vacaville; Jonathan Wilby, Orange County; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; 
Sean Bailey, Northstar.  
Item 7.2 – HR Policy Audit 
Item 7.3 – AB1825/1661 Compliance Progress  
Mr. Banks noted that in September, Gallagher’s Core360 Loss Control Platform became 
free to all clients. We sent out an email to all Districts within FAIRA, and noted that 
Districts that were non-compliant with AB1825/1661 could now get the training for free. 
We did however receive some kickback from Districts who thought they did not need the 
training. We spoke to Mr. Bacigalupi and he advised that the only personnel who do not 
need to take the training are people who are completely unpaid and receive no 
compensation whatsoever. This includes travel, food, lodging, etc. We have had a 
couple of Districts confirm they fall into this category. We are now down to 10 Districts 
that have not signed up for the Core360 Loss Control Portal and have not completed the 
training. This is better than where we were at the last Board Meeting, but there is still 
work to do.   
Item 7.4 – Drive to Survive – 2020 Plan 
Mr. Banks confirmed we will be doing the Drive to Survive classes again in 2020. The 
plan is to have the meetings around the same time as they were this year – late July or 
early August. The first class will likely be at Tiburon FPD, the second class at San 
Miguel Consolidated, and the third at one of our Nevada Districts.   
Item 7.5 – Core360 Loss Control Platform Update 



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2019 

 

 
March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 14 of 67 

Mr. Banks noted this ties into 7.3 – the Loss Control Platform is now free. He added that 
you get 10 courses for free and each course gets you unlimited seats. He noted that the 
following seven pages are all of the 100+ courses available to pick from.   
Item 7.6 – Core360 – EigenPrism 
Mr. Phillips noted that the EigenPrism is another free tool offered to clients from 
Gallagher. What we can do with this is generate maps, graphs and reports by uploading 
the statement of values, which shows exposures to natural hazards and catastrophes 
that could potentially effect a Districts assets. We can also activate real time alerts, so 
should an event happen, you will receive an alert to give an update on where a fire is 
moving, when a storm will him, etc. Mr. Paskle stated that it would be good to have a 
presentation on this to see how it works in action. Mr. Phillips said we will have that 
prepared for the March meeting. 
Item 8.1 – State of the Property & Liability Marketplace 
Eric Kikalo stated that Property rates are up about 10%, Liability is at roughly 5-10%, 
Management Liability nearing 10-20% and Auto is looking at 5-15%. One difference 
about the current marketplace from times past is that they are seeing trends with major 
catastrophes. One thing we are going to do to attempt to mitigate an expected increase 
in premium is get to the market as early as possible. Ms. Blankenburg added that we 
were extremely lucky that we were able to secure a flat property rate at the last renewal. 
She noted that in the current marketplace, we have seen increases anywhere from 10% 
to 100%, and that we are hoping to limit the increase to 10% at the 2020 renewal.   
Item 8.2 – Prospect Activity  
Mr. Kikalo advised that on November 18, we sent out our first prospect mailing to 74 
Districts that were identified as potential Members to join FAIRA. He explained that the 
prospect are identified by confirming their estimated insurance premium of $7,500 or 
greater. The second mailing will take place shortly after and will be a follow up to 
FAIRA’s program as a whole. We will also include a state of the marketplace to show 
them how rates are expected to rise, and how FAIRA has been able to keep its rates 
relatively flat.   
Item 9.1 – Potential Litigation. [Government Code 54956.9(b)] 
Item 9.2 – Potential Litigation. [Government Code 54956.9(a)] 
Item 9.3 – FAIRA Claims and Loss Report 
Item 10 – Incoming President Wilby to Appoint an Elected Executive Board 
Member 
Jonathan Wilby would like to elect Don Butz as the Elected Executive Board Member. 
M/S/P Brainard/Pomi 
Members that voted to approve the motion: Bill Paskle, Alpine; Criss Brainard, San 
Miguel; David Fulcher, Carmel Highlands; Don Butz, Lakeside; Eric Walder, South 
Placer; Howard Wood, Vacaville; Jonathan Wilby, Orange County; Mark Pomi, Kentfield; 
Sean Bailey, Northstar. 
Item 11 – Other Business  



FAIRA Board and Executive Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2019 

 

 
March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 15 of 67 

No other business.   
Item 12 – Adjournment  
A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 10:55AM.  
M/S/P Walder/Butz 

 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 16 of 67 

5 General Manager Report 

5.1 FAIRA Activity Update 
Susan and Alex have serviced the General Manager side of FAIRA with the following: 

- Signed 20 Fire District’s up for Gallagher’s Core360 Loss Control Portal 
- Sent out the FAIRA Audited Financials for the years ending June 30th 2019 and 2018 
- Sent out 3rd request notices to District’s who have been non-responsive to our HR policy 

and procedure reviews 
- Sent out over 200 accident reporting kits 
- Scheduled the 2020 Drive to Survive locations and dates 
- Met with OFCA to conduct an Insurance 101 and reviewed a list of their questions that 

included claims, for which we arranged a follow-up call with the claims adjuster where 
we worked through a number of questions. The Insurance 101’s  will continue after the 
7/1/2020 renewal 

- Held monthly calls with Allied Public Risk to discuss open claims 
- Sent out 10 year FAIRA Loss Summary to Districts with over 25% loss ratios. An 

example of what was sent it on the follow pages. The Districts with a loss ratio of over 
25% are: 

o Capenteria-Summerland FPD 
o South Coast FPD 
o Montecito FPD 
o Anderson FPD 
o Lakeside FPD 
o Kneeland FPD 
o Tiburon FPD 
o Penn Valley FPD 
o Placer Hills FPD 
o Alta FPD 
o American Canyon FPD 
o Central FPD of Santa Cruz County 
o Smith Valley FPD 
o Orange County FA 
o Vacaville FPD 
o Occidental CSD FD 
o Fresno County FPD 
o Moraga-Orinda FPD 
o Ben Lomond FPD 
o Valley Center FPD 
o Montezuma FPD 
o Humboldt Bay Fire JPA 
o For Dick FPD 
o Gold Ridge FPD 
o Five Cities FA 
o Salida FPD 
o San Ramon Valley FPD 
o Lake Valley FPD 
o Arcata FPD 
o Murrierta FPD 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 17 of 67 

o Mi-Wuk Sugar Pine FPD 
o Lee Vining FPD 
o Oakdale Rural FPD 
o Sonoma County FD 
o Cypress FPD 
o Central County FD 
o Pajaro Valley FPD 
o Murphy’s FPD 

 

Receive and File 

 
 
 
 
  
 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 18 of 67 

 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 19 of 67 

 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 20 of 67 

 
 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 21 of 67 

 
 
 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 22 of 67 

5.2 CAJPA Data Analysis Project 
 
 
 
At the June 17, 2019 Board Meeting, the Board approved a contribution of $5,000 towards a 
California specific General Liability Study on behalf of CAJPA. The purpose of the study is to 
determine which types of losses serve as the greatest severity and frequency to California 
Public Entities.   
The project itself is currently underway. The goal is to have the study completed in 2020. On the 
following two pages is the information we received from CAJPA.  
 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 23 of 67 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 24 of 67 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 25 of 67 

 

5.3 Non-Responsive Districts 
 
 
 
At the December meeting, Marco reported that he and Mark Shadowens were having difficulty 
getting in contact with 1. Kneeland FPD, 2. Central of Santa Cruz FPD and 3. Humboldt FPD to 
review HR policies and procedures. With our first and second requests being unsuccessful, we 
prepared third request letters that were to be sent to the three Districts. While doing so, 
Kneeland had contacted us, making them compliant.  
 
Third requests were sent via certified mail to both Central of Santa Cruz and Humboldt. We 
have heard back from both, putting them into compliance. Should have one of these District not 
responded to the third and final request, a 10% increase in premium would have been levied. 
The letters sent are on the follow pages.  
 

Receive and File 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 26 of 67 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 27 of 67 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 28 of 67 

5.4 Consideration of Implementing Experience Modifications and/or 
Increased Deductibles 

To be reported on verbally by FAIRA’s General Manager, Susan Blankenburg. 
 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 29 of 67 

5.5 FDAC Agreement 
 
 
 
Enclosed for your review and consideration is the FDAC agreement extending the current terms and 
conditions effective July 1, 2020 to July 1, 2021. The agreement remains at a $15,000 annual fee.  
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
 
 
 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 30 of 67 

 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 31 of 67 

 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 32 of 67 

 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 33 of 67 

 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 34 of 67 

5.6 Discussion on FAIRA’s Annual Meeting – June 15, 2020 
 
 
 
FAIRA’s annual Board of Director’s meetings have historically been in San Francisco, using the 
Gallagher Board Room and hosting a dinner nearby. Staff will be securing a dinner reservation for the 
Board of Director’s and significant others for the evening of June 15, 2020.  
 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 35 of 67 

6 Financial Update 

 

6.1 Audited Financial Statement year ending June 30, 2019 and 2018 
 
 
 
A copy of this report was sent to the FAIRA Board of Director’s on 2/13/2020. Due to the new structure 
of our insurance program with the $100,000 Deductible and the $750,000 Annual Aggregate, an 
extensive amount of additional documentation was required for the auditors to complete the audit, all of 
which was provided by Zack. 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 36 of 67 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 37 of 67 

6.2 Deductible Payments Update 
 
 
 
The last group of invoices distributed requesting reimbursement from member Districts for their 
deductible's that were paid on their behalf by FAIRA were sent 11/15/2019. All of the reimbursements 
have been paid with the exception of OCFA, whose check is in the mail.  
 
We are experiencing delays with obtaining our loss runs from APR, from which the applicable 
deductibles are provided. We are expecting that the next batch of invoices will be higher than usual 
because we need to “catch up” for several months for both the 2018-19 and 2019-20 policy years. As of 
2/25/2020, Allied World has billed FAIRA for $616,000 of the $750,000 aggregate for the 2018-19 term. 
 

Receive and File 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 38 of 67 

6.3 Presentation of the 2019-2020 Updated Annual Budget 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed is the updated 2019/2020 and draft 2020/2021 Budget. The 2020/2021 budget includes 
estimates including Insurance Premium estimates and several assumptions that Zack and Susan 
present. 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 39 of 67 

 
  

FAIRA 
2020-21 DRAFT BUDGET DRAFT5 

 
FUND # 2018-19 

Audited 
2019-20 
Updated 

2020-21 
Estimated 

Variance 
+/(-) 

  Reinsurance  Reinsurance  Reinsurance   

 Summary    

    

 INCOME 
 Total Insurance Premium Revenue $ 2,396,983 $ 2,474,944 $ 2,749,703  $ 274,759 

6150 Aggregate Deductible Fund $ 750,000 $ 750,000 $ 750,000  $ - 
6150b Surplus Used to Fund Aggregate Deductible Fund $ (460,000) $ (350,000) 1 $ (300,000) 3 $ 50,000 
3030 Pool Supplemental Premium $ 97,730 $ 101,376 $ 74,385  $ (26,991) 
3026 Rate Stabilization Fund Adjustment $ (135,389) $ (113,024) 1 $ (113,024) 3 $ - 

 TOTAL INSURANCE REVENUE $ 2,649,324 $ 2,863,296 $ 3,161,064  $ 297,768 
 

6150c 
 
Member Deductibles 

 
$ 223,170 

 

4 
 
$ 223,170 

 

4 
 
$ 225,000 

 

4 
 
$ 1,830 

3061 Pool Supplemental Premium Adjustment $ - $ - $ -  $ - 
3060 Commission Income $ 358,050 $ 369,742 $ 410,970  $ 41,228 
3039 Net Investment Income $ 129,152 $ 75,000 $ 75,000  $ - 

 TOTAL GROSS INCOME $ 3,359,696 $ 3,531,208 $ 3,872,034  $ 340,826 
     

 EXPENSES 
6100 Total Insurance Premiums $ 2,396,983 $ 2,474,944 $ 2,749,703  $ 274,759 

 Aggregate Deductible Fund $ 750,000 $ 750,000 $ 750,000  $ - 
 TOTAL INSURANCE EXPENSES $ 3,146,983 $ 3,224,944 $ 3,499,703  $ 274,759 
     

 Total Brokerage Fee $ 225,500 $ 225,500 $ 225,500  $ - 
  

Other Expenses 
     

6399 Total Claims & Risk Mgmt Expenses $ 18,287 $ 36,000 2 $ 33,000  $ (3,000) 
7010 General Management Fee $ 205,254 $ 211,822 $ 218,177  $ 6,355 

 Total Support Services $ 28 $ 28 $ 28  $ - 
 Total Board Expenses $ 10,389 $ 13,000 $ 13,000  $ - 
 Total Professional Fees $ 45,419 $ 56,650 2 $ 53,650  $ (3,000) 
 Total Other Expenses $ 25,591 $ 17,000 $ 17,000  $ - 
 Total OTHER EXPENSES $ 304,968 $ 334,500 $ 334,855  $ 355 
     

 TOTAL EXPENSES $ 3,677,451 $ 3,784,944 $ 4,060,058  $ 275,114 
     

 NET INCOME (SHORTFALL) $ (317,755) 4 $ (253,736) 4 $ (188,024) 3 $ 65,712 
     
 Premium Billable to Members $ 2,649,324 $ 2,863,296 1 $ 3,161,064 3  
 Billable % Change versus Prior Year 14.1% 8.1% 10.4% 
  
 Rate Stabilization Fund $ 226,048 $ 113,024 $ -  $ (113,024) 
 Surplus $ 2,551,482 $ 2,410,770 $ 2,335,770  $ (75,000) 
 Total Equity $ 2,777,530 $ 2,523,794 $ 2,335,770  $ (188,024) 
  

2019-20 Adjustments & Net Income: To mitigate the insurance cost increase, the Board approved the use of $350,000 from Surplus and rebate of 
1 $113,024 from Rate Stabilzation Fund (i.e. one-third of existing RSF, except OCFA). This is the main reason that FAIRA will spend $253,736 more than 

 it charges to members. 
 2019-20 Other Expenses: The final $15,000 of the $0 Loss Control Fund established in 2016-17 is budgeted for 'Drive-to-Survive' courses. $18,000 is 

2 budgeted for a Northern California Loss Control Consultant and a 'Harassment Training Compliance Grant Fund.' $5,000 is budgeted for a CAJPA 
 Tort Liability Study. 
 2020-21 Adjustments & Net Income: To mitigate the insurance cost increase, it is proposed that the Board approve the use of $300,000 from Surplus 

3 and refund of $113,024 from Rate Stabilzation Fund (i.e. the third and final installment). This is the main reason that FAIRA will spend $188,024 more 
 than it charges to members. 
 Member Deductible Revenue of $223,000 per year have reduced budgeted shortfalls (i.e. the 2019-20 shortfall is now $253,736 instead of the budgeted 

4 $478,024). The 2018-19 Audited shortfall of $317,755 is also better than the budgeted amount of $625,189 due to $57,000 higher Investment Income 
 and $25,000 lower NorCal Loss Control expense. 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 40 of 67 

  

FAIRA 
2020-21 DRAFT BUDGET DRAFT5 

 
FUND # 2018-19 

Audited 
2019-20 
Updated 

2020-21 
Estimated 

Variance 
+/(-) 

  Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance  
  

 INCOME    

     

 INSURANCE REVENUE 
 Insurance Premium Revenue     

3001 Primary Package Premium $ 2,059,864 $ 2,106,998 $ 2,344,703 $ 237,705 
3023 Umbrella Premium $ 337,119 $ 367,946 $ 405,000 $ 37,054 

 Total Insurance Premium Revenue $ 2,396,983 $ 2,474,944 $ 2,749,703 $ 274,759 
  

Other Insurance Revenue 
    

6150 Aggregate Deductible Fund $ 750,000 $ 750,000 $ 750,000 $ - 
6150b Surplus Used to Fund Aggregate Deductible Fund $ (460,000) $ (350,000) $ (300,000) $ 50,000 
3030 Pool Supplemental Premium $ 97,730 $ 101,376 $ 74,385 $ (26,991) 
3026 Rate Stabilization Fund Adjustment $ (135,389) $ (113,024) $ (113,024) $ - 

 Total Other Insurance Revenue $ 252,341 $ 388,352 $ 411,361 $ 23,009 
     

 TOTAL INSURANCE REVENUE $ 2,649,324 $ 2,863,296 $ 3,161,064 $ 297,768 
     

 OTHER INCOME 
6150c Member Deductibles $ 223,170 $ 223,170 $ 225,000 $ 1,830 
3061 Pool Supplemental Premium Adjustment $ - $ - $ - $ - 
3060 Commission Income $ 358,050 $ 369,742 $ 410,970 $ 41,228 
3075 Change In Value Of Investments $ (27,528) $ (75,000) $ (75,000) $ - 
3080 Interest Income $ 156,680 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ - 

 Total Other Income $ 710,372 $ 667,912 $ 710,970 $ 43,058 
     

 TOTAL GROSS INCOME $ 3,359,696 $ 3,531,208 $ 3,872,034 $ 340,826 
     
 Commissions (Illustrative Only)     
 Package Premium Subject To Commisson $ 2,049,664 $ 2,096,998 $ 2,334,803 $ 237,805 
 Commission Percentage 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% - 
 Total Commission (Excluding Umbrella) $ 307,482 $ 314,550 $ 350,220 $ 35,670 
  

Umbrella Premium ($10M, Argonaut Ins. Co.) 
 
$ 337,119 

 
$ 367,946 

 
$ 405,000 

 
$ 37,054 

 Commission Percentage 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% - 
 Total Commission (Umbrella) $ 50,568 $ 55,192 $ 60,750 $ 5,558 
     

 Total Commission $ 358,050 $ 369,742 $ 410,970 $ 41,228 
 Loss Control (Not Subject To Commission) included included included $ - 

3060 Total Commission (and 2016-17 Loss Control Fund) $ 358,050 $ 369,742 $ 410,970 $ 41,228 
 The above chart is not part of the Budget calculations. It is for information only. 
 Commission is calculated on the total first dollar premium paid to insurance company. 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 41 of 67 

  

FAIRA 
2020-21 DRAFT BUDGET DRAFT5 

 
FUND # 2018-19 

Audited 
2019-20 
Updated 

2020-21 
Estimated 

Variance 
+/(-) 

  Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance  

 EXPENSES    

     

 INSURANCE EXPENSES 
6112 
6150 

Package Premium 
Cyber Risk 
Terrorism 
Excess (Central County FD $5M Xs. $1M Underlying) 
Policy Fee (Not Subject To Commission) 
Loss Control Fund (Not Subject To Commission) 

$ 2,039,535 
included 
included 

$ 10,129 
$ 10,200 

included 

$ 2,086,869 
included 
included 

$ 10,129 
$ 10,000 

included 

$ 2,324,168 
included 
included 

$ 10,635 
$ 9,900 

included 

$ 237,299 
$ - 
$ - 
$ 506 
$ (100) 
$ - 

 Total Package Premiums $ 2,059,864 $ 2,106,998 $ 2,344,703 $ 237,705 
 

6105 
6100 

 
Umbrella Premium ($10M, Argonaut Ins. Co.) 

 
$ 337,119 

 
$ 367,946 

 
$ 405,000 

 
$ 37,054 

Total Insurance Premiums $ 2,396,983 $ 2,474,944 $ 2,749,703 $ 274,759 
 

6110 
6150 
6160 

 
Aggregate Stop Loss 
Aggregate Deductible Fund 
Aggregate Deductible Paid 

 
$ - 
$ 687,535 
$ 62,465 

 
$ - 
$ 750,000 

included 

 
$ - 
$ 750,000 

included 

 
$ - 
$ - 
$ - 

 TOTAL INSURANCE EXPENSES $ 3,146,983 $ 3,224,944 $ 3,499,703 $ 274,759 
     

 BROKERAGE FEE 
6370 
6375 

Brokerage Fee 
Brokerage New Member Commissions 

$ 225,500 
$ - 

$ 225,500 
$ - 

$ 225,500 
$ - 

$ - 
$ - 

 Total Brokerage Fee $ 225,500 $ 225,500 $ 225,500 $ - 
     

 CLAIMS & RISK MGMT EXPENSES 
6395 
6398 
6390 
6399 

Loss Control 
Risk Management And Website 
Driver Training Simulator 

$ 14,843 
$ 3,444 
$ - 

$ 33,000 
$ 3,000 
$ - 

$ 30,000 
$ 3,000 
$ - 

$ (3,000) 
$ - 
$ - 

Total Claims & Risk Mgmt Expenses $ 18,287 $ 36,000 $ 33,000 $ (3,000) 
     



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 42 of 67 

  

FAIRA 
2020-21 DRAFT BUDGET DRAFT5 

 
FUND # 2018-19 

Audited 
2019-20 
Updated 

2020-21 
Estimated 

Variance 
+/(-) 

   Reinsurance Reinsurance Reinsurance  

 ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 
7010 General Management Fee $ 205,254 $ 211,822 $ 218,177 $ 6,355 

 SUPPORT SERVICES     
 Board Liaison Officer     

7451 Board Liaison Fee $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7623 Board Liaison Travel $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7206 Board Liaison Meals $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7500 Support Service Functions $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7350 Printing $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7400 Postage $ 28 $ 28 $ 28 $ - 

 Total Support Services $ 28 $ 28 $ 28 $ - 
     

 Total Administrative Costs $ 205,282 $ 211,850 $ 218,205 $ 6,355 
      

 BOARD EXPENSES      
7060 Dues, Expenses And Subscriptions As Needed $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7200 Board Meals And Lodging $ 5,736 $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ - 
7220 Board Meeting Expenses $ 51 $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $ - 
7620 Board Travel $ 4,602 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ - 

 Total Board Expenses $ 10,389 $ 13,000 $ 13,000 $ - 
      

 PROFESSIONAL FEES      
7100 Legal Fees - Retainer $ 3,368 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ - 
7101 Legal Fees - Other $ 6,835 $ 5,000 $ 2,000 $ (3,000) 
7105 Actuarial Fees $ - $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ - 
7040 Investment Professional Fees $ 7,366 $ 7,500 $ 7,500 $ - 
7020 Accounting & Bookkeeping $ 20,200 $ 20,200 $ 20,200 $ - 
7022 Banking Service Charges $ 480 $ 250 $ 250 $ - 
7025 Annual Certified Audit $ 7,170 $ 8,700 $ 8,700 $ - 
7030 Digital Document Retention $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7031 Property Appraisals $ - $ - $ - $ - 

 Total Professional Fees $ 45,419 $ 56,650 $ 53,650 $ (3,000) 
      

 OTHER EXPENSES      
7000 FDAC Sponsor Fee $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ - 
7630 Communication $ - $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ - 
7632 Premium Dividends $ - $ - $ - $ - 
7110 Miscellaneous Other Expenses $ 10,591 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ - 

 Total Other Expenses $ 25,591 $ 17,000 $ 17,000 $ - 
     

 TOTAL NON-INSURANCE EXPENSES $ 304,968 $ 334,500 $ 334,855 $ 355 
     

 TOTAL EXPENSES $ 3,677,451 $ 3,784,944 $ 4,060,058 $ 275,114 
     

7025 NET INCOME (Shortfall) $ (317,755) $ (253,736) $ (188,024) $ 65,712 
2019-20 Loss Control includes Drive to Survive, NorCal Consultant and Training Fund: Legal includes CAJPA Study 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 43 of 67 

 
 

7 Loss Control Consultant 

7.1 Loss Control Update 
 
 
 
The most recent Members visited were Lakeside Fire Protection District and Valley Center Fire 
Protection District. With Lakeside, we are currently waiting for them to provide copies of the most 
current HR policies and procedures documentation for review, per the discussion that was conducted 
when Mark Shadowens met with them. Mark also held a telephonic meeting with Valley Center.  
Next visit to be scheduled is with Murrieta Fire Protection District. 
 

Receive and File 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 44 of 67 

7.2 Automobile Liability Loss Control 
 
 
 
Similar to the approach taken to identify and manage the pool’s Employment Practice Liability 
escalating losses, we will be taking steps to address the pool’s Automobile Liability and Physical 
Damage claims.  
We have great loss data that will be analyzed by loss type, frequency and severity, from which a loss 
prevention program to be rolled out starting with our top loss leaders.  
More details will be reported at the June Board meeting.  
 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 45 of 67 

 

7.3 Claim Connect 
 
 
 
Claim Connect is a tool that can be utilized by Gallagher Clients which shows all claims and where the 
majority of fall under. For example, if you have 100 total auto claims in a 5 year period, it will break 
down what each claim fell under. Such as, 40% are theft/vandalism, while 22% are rollovers, and 10% 
are the insured vehicle being rear-end. It also gives other analytics, such as the average cost incurred 
for physical damage claims, liability, etc. This is a report that can be ran for all lines of coverage. 
 

Receive and File 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 46 of 67 

7.4 Reserve Analysis 
 
 
 
The Reserve Analysis provides an estimate of the unpaid liabilities at a given accounting date, for a 
given line of liability. It is useful for: 

- Evaluating outstanding liabilities to date from the property/casualty lines of liability 
- Independent review of the methodology, assumptions, and reasonableness of reserves 

computed by outside actuarial firms 
- Monitoring the movement in ultimate losses, frequency and severity, and loss rate by policy year 

 

Receive and File 

 
 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 47 of 67 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 48 of 67 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 49 of 67 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 50 of 67 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 51 of 67 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 52 of 67 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 53 of 67 

 

7.5 Drive to Survive – 2020 Dates 
 
 
 
The annual Drive to Survive dates are set. The schedule is as follows: 
 

- July 27, 2020 at San Miguel from 9AM – 12PM 
- July 28, 2020 at Kentfield from 9AM – 12PM 
- July 29, 2020 at Mason Valley from 6PM – 9PM 

 
As always, we encourage everyone to participate and invite as many other Districts as they can. On the 
following two pages is the flyer we sent to the hosting Fire Districts.  
 

Receive and File 

 
 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 54 of 67 

 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 55 of 67 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 56 of 67 

7.6 Core360 EigenPrism Demonstration 
 
 
 
EigenPrism is another tool available from Gallagher’s Core360 approach to evaluating and minimizing 
total cost of risk. It generates maps, graphs and reports which enables us to evaluate FAIRA’s 
exposure to natural hazards and catastrophes such as wildfires, landslides and floods. Real-time alerts 
will be activated during the first quarter of 2020. The brokerage and pool administration teams will 
review the alerts and email them to the effected Fire Districts. 
 

Receive and File 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 57 of 67 

8 Brokerage Update 

 

8.1 Stewardship Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Receive and File 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 58 of 67 

8.2 Gallagher Fee Renewal  
 
 
 
FAIRA’s agreement with Gallagher is up for renewal, and attached you will find a letter Eric Kikalo 
presented to President Wilby noting that the contract year is for the 1/2020-2021 term at a flat fee, per 
the terms of our agreement. 
 

Consideration and Possible Action 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 59 of 67 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 60 of 67 

8.3 Renewal Expectations and Insurance Premiums 
 
 
 
In our initial discussions with FAIRA's current carrier, we have requested a premium indication for 
budgetary purposes. It was brought to our attention that last year there was no increase for property, 
while most carriers had increased rates from 10-25%. There has been an increase in large Liability 
losses that may impact the premium as well. We are hoping to lock in a renewal premium earlier this 
year than last, to avoid any additional increases due to further development and/or wild fire activity 
impacting the property insurance marketplace. 
 
We have requested our renewal premium by March 6, 2020 and will be presenting the renewal 
premium for the lead layer and will provide report on the terms. FAIRA’s current broker, Eric Kikalo, and 
Ryan Jacques, Account Executive, will have more to report on this verbally. 
.  

Consideration and Possible Action 

 
 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 61 of 67 

8.4 Prospecting Update 
After sending out our marketing materials, we have gotten some interest from a few Districts that we 
have quoted in past years. The FAIRA brokerage team is working with targeted prospects in hopes to 
provide quotes to join the program come July 1, 2020. Following our mailing marketing campaign, we 
began to call the prospective Districts to determine if they would be a good fit for FAIRA, and to give 
them a chance to ask us any questions they have on the program. Below is a list of the prospects we 
sent our initial mailing to, along with the Districts we have personally followed up with highlighted in 
blue. 
Monterey County Regional Fire District is a prospect we have been working closely with, and they will 
likely join the program in 2020-21. We have begun the process of quoting, and have provided the 
FAIRA documentation for counsel review. 
 

Receive and File 

Organization First Name Last Name City/Town State 
Alameda County Fire Department David Rocha Dublin CA 

Albion-Little River Fire Protection District Chuck Greenberg Albion  CA 
Altaville-Melones FPD Tom Spence Altaville  CA 

Amador Fire Protection District Jim McCart Jackson CA 
Apple Valley Fire Protection District Sid Hultquist Apple Valley CA 

Aptos/La Selva Fire Protection District Tom Crosser Aptos CA 
Artois FPD Jack Cavier Artois   CA 

Barona FPD Randy Sandoval Lakeside  CA 
Ceres Dept. of Public Safety - Emergency Services Bryan Nicoles Ceres  CA 

Chester PUD (incl. FPD) Frank Motzkus Chester   CA 
Chino Valley Independent Fire Protection District Tim Shackelford Chino Hills CA 

Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Jeff Carman Pleasant Hill  CA 
Copperopolis Fire Protection District Steve Kovacs Copperopolis CA 
Deer Springs Fire Protection District Rick Johnson Escondido  CA 

Diamond Springs-El Dorado Fire Protection District Robert Combs Diamond Springs CA 
Dunsmuir-Castella FPD Dan Padilla Dunsmuir  CA 

El Dorado County Fire Protection District Bruce Lacher Camino CA 
El Dorado Hills Fire Department Maurice Johnson El Dorado Hills CA 
Elk Creek Fire Protection District Bill McLaughlin Elk Creek  CA 
Escalon Fire Protection District Rick Mello Escalon CA 

French Camp-McKinley Rural Fire Protection District Frederick Manding French Camp CA 
Georgetown Fire Protection District Glenn Brown Georgetown CA 

Glenn-Cordora Fire Protection District Randall Toews Glenn   CA 
Hamilton Branch Fire Protection District Gary Pini Lake Almanor   CA 

Higgins Area Fire Protection District Jerry Good Auburn   CA 
Julian Cuyamaca Fire Protection District Rick Marinelli Julian CA 

Kensington Fire Protection District Michael Pigoni Kensington  CA 
Keyes Fire Protection District Erik Klevmyr Keyes CA 

Lake County Fire Protection District Willie Sapeta Clearlake CA 
Lakeport Fire Protection District Goug Hutchison Lakeport CA 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 62 of 67 

Lathrop-Manteca Fire District Gene Neely Lathrop CA 
Linda Fire Protection District Richard Webb Marysville CA 

Linden-Peters FPD Kirk Noffsinger Linden CA 
Little Lake Fire Protection District Chrisopher Wilkes Willits CA 

Long Valley Fire Department Vince Maniaci Crowley Lake  CA 
Madison Fire Protection District Tom Lopez Madison  CA 

Mammoth Lakes Fire Protection District Frank  Frievalt Mammoth Lakes CA 
Marina Fire Department Doug McCoun Marina CA 

Meeks Bay Fire Protection District Shawn Crawford Tahoma CA 
Monterey County Regional Fire District Michael Urquides Salinas CA 
North County Fire Protection District Stephen Abbott Fallbrook  CA 

North County Fire Protection District of Monterey County Richard Hutchinson  CASTROVILLE CA 
North Tahoe Fire Protection District Michael  Schwartz Tahoe City  CA 
Northshore Fire Protection District Mike Ciancio Lucerne CA 

Ophir Hill FPD Robb Rothenberger Cedar Ridge CA 
Orland Rural FPD Vernon Dado Orland  CA 

Peninsula FPD Gary Pini Westwood CA 
Penryn FPD Mitch Higgins Penryn CA 
Pioneer FPD Robert Gill Somerset CA 

Plumas Brophy FPD (Now Know As Wheatland FA) A. Paquette Wheatland CA 
Princeton FPD Andy Ferrendelli Princeton  CA 

Rancho Santa Fe Fire Protection District Nicholas Pavone Rancho Santa Fe CA 
Rescue Fire Protection District Thomas Keating Rescue CA 

Ripon Consolidated FD Dennis Bitters Ripon CA 
Riverdale FPD Ronald  Bass Riverdale   CA 

Rodeo Hercules Fire District Bryan Craig Hercules CA 
Running Spring FPD Bill Smith Running Springs  CA 

Russian River Fire Protection District Steve Baxman Guernville CA 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Todd Harms Mather CA 

San Bernardino County Fire Protection District  Mark Hartwig San Bernardino  CA 
San Marcos FD Todd Newman San Marcos CA 

Southern Marin Fire Protection District Chris Tubbs Mill Valley CA 
Spring Lake FPD Jeran Ulrich Woodland   CA 
Strawberry FPD Thomas  Brick Strawberry   CA 

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District Scott Baker Zephyr Cove NV 
Truckee Fire Protection District Robert Bena Truckee CA 

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Charles Moore Reno NV 
Ventura County FPD Mark Lorenzen Camarillo   CA 

West Plainfield Fire Protection District Cherie Rita Davis CA 
Williams Fire Protection Authority Jeff Gilbert Williams  CA 

Willows Rural FPD Jake Jacobs Willows   CA 
Wilton FPD Jeff Cookson Wilton  CA 

Winters FPD Scott Dozier Winters  CA 
Woodbridge Rural FPD Steve Butler Woodbrige CA 

  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 63 of 67 

9 Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel 

The Board may enter into Closed session at this time. 

9.1 Potential Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(b)] 
9.2 Pending Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(a)] 
9.3 FAIRA Claims and Loss Reports 
The above matters described on the agenda may be held in closed session as a conference with 
counsel under the provisions of Government Code § 54956.9 (a) and (b). If closed sessions are held, a 
report of actions subject to disclosure will be made by the Authority’s Counsel upon return to open 
session respectively. 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 64 of 67 

10 Other Business 

Other business as necessary so that FAIRA can perform its functions as authorized by law and which 
has arisen within seventy-two (72) hours prior to the initiation of this meeting and may be considered 
under the Brown Act. 
 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 65 of 67 

11 Correspondence and Informational Items 

11.1  Lakeside FPD – Change in District Alternative Representative 

 

Receive and File 

 
  



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 66 of 67 

 

12 Adjournment 

I certify that this Authority Agenda was posted and sent by First Class United States Mail to all 
Members of the Authority 72 hours before the noted meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  Date: December 16, 2019 
Susan Blankenburg 
General Manager 
 



 

March 9, 2020 - Fire Agencies Meeting of the Board and Executive Board Page 67 of 67 

 


	1 Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum
	2 Confirmation of Agenda
	3 Public Comment
	Oral Communications to the Board, opportunity for public comment with respect to matters not on the Agenda
	This portion of the Agenda may be utilized by any person to address the Board of Directors’ on any matter within the jurisdiction of FAIRA not listed on the agenda. Depending on the subject matter, per the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Board may not be able...

	4 Approval of the Minutes of the December 16, 2019 Board and Executive Board Meeting
	5 General Manager Report
	5.1 FAIRA Activity Update
	Receive and File

	5.2 CAJPA Data Analysis Project
	Receive and File

	5.3 Non-Responsive Districts
	Receive and File

	5.4 Consideration of Implementing Experience Modifications and/or Increased Deductibles
	Receive and File

	5.5 FDAC Agreement
	Consideration and Possible Action

	5.6 Discussion on FAIRA’s Annual Meeting – June 15, 2020
	Receive and File


	6 Financial Update
	6.1 Audited Financial Statement year ending June 30, 2019 and 2018
	Consideration and Possible Action

	6.2 Deductible Payments Update
	Receive and File

	6.3  Presentation of the 2019-2020 Updated Annual Budget
	Consideration and Possible Action


	7 Loss Control Consultant
	7.1 Loss Control Update
	Receive and File

	7.2 Automobile Liability Loss Control
	Receive and File

	7.3 Claim Connect
	Receive and File

	7.4 Reserve Analysis
	Receive and File

	7.5 Drive to Survive – 2020 Dates
	Receive and File

	7.6 Core360 EigenPrism Demonstration
	Receive and File


	8 Brokerage Update
	8.1 Stewardship Report
	Receive and File

	8.2 Gallagher Fee Renewal
	Consideration and Possible Action

	8.3 Renewal Expectations and Insurance Premiums
	Consideration and Possible Action

	8.4 Prospecting Update
	Receive and File


	9 Closed Session Conference with Legal Counsel
	The Board may enter into Closed session at this time.
	9.1 Potential Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(b)]
	9.2 Pending Litigation. [Government Code § 54956.9(a)]
	9.3 FAIRA Claims and Loss Reports
	The above matters described on the agenda may be held in closed session as a conference with counsel under the provisions of Government Code § 54956.9 (a) and (b). If closed sessions are held, a report of actions subject to disclosure will be made by ...


	10 Other Business
	Other business as necessary so that FAIRA can perform its functions as authorized by law and which has arisen within seventy-two (72) hours prior to the initiation of this meeting and may be considered under the Brown Act.

	11 Correspondence and Informational Items
	11.1  Lakeside FPD – Change in District Alternative Representative
	Receive and File


	12 Adjournment
	I certify that this Authority Agenda was posted and sent by First Class United States Mail to all Members of the Authority 72 hours before the noted meeting.


